


 
 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
May 12, 2020 

9:00 am 

Lake Lure Municipal Center 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. Call to Order 

 Invocation 
 Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. Agenda Adoption 

 
III. Public Comment 

 
IV. Consent Agenda 

 
A. Adoption of the March 10, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes, the March 17, 2020 Special 

Town Council and UAB Joint Meeting Minutes, the March 25, 2020 Special Workshop 
Meeting Minutes, and the April 15, 2020 Special Town Council Meeting Minutes. 
 

B. Adoption of the February 11, 2020 Closed Session Minutes and the March 10, 2020 Closed 
Session Minutes 
 

C. Adoption of the April 24, 2020 Special Subcommittee Interview Minutes 
 

D. BA# 275-279 
 

V. Subcommittee Report Regarding Lobbyists 
 

VI. Budget Workshop 
 

A. Review Department Analysis (Hydroelectric Department; Water/Sewer Department; Parks, 
Recreation & Lake Department) 
 

B. Review Draft 2020-2029 Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) 
 

C. Review Draft Budget Message and Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021  
 

D. Decisions Regarding Department Analysis 2020-2029 CIP and FY 20-21 Budget  
 

VII. Adjournment 



  
 
 
 
 
   
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD TUESDAY, MARCH 10, 2020, 5:00 P.M. AT THE LAKE LURE MUNICIPAL 
CENTER 
  
PRESENT: Mayor Carol C. Pritchett  
  Mayor Pro Tem John W. Moore 
  Commissioner Patrick Bryant 
  Commissioner David DiOrio 

Commissioner John Kilby 
 
  William Morgan, Jr., Town Attorney   

Shannon Baldwin, Town Manager 
 
ABSENT: N/A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Carol C. Pritchett called the meeting to order at 5:03 p.m. and gave the invocation. 
Council members led the pledge of allegiance.  
  

II. APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 
Commissioner David DiOrio made a motion to approve the agenda, as presented. 

Commissioner Patrick Bryant seconded and the motion carried 4-0.  
  

III. MAYOR’S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Mayor Pritchett felt it was important to recognize the situation with the coronavirus 

expressing that we all have individual responsibilities to keep ourselves safe by practicing 
universal precautions as recommended by the CDC. She pointed out that there are a number of 
websites offering information. The Town has taken a lot of precautions to ensure that staff are 
protected. She asked that everyone remain calm and not get caught up in the panic in the 
moment.  
 

IV. CHAMBER COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Laura Doster, Hickory Nut Gorge Chamber Executive Director, highlighted on ways the 

Chamber helps to support the Town. Ms. Doster reported that the Chamber is designing a 



Page 2- Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 

 

“Welcome to Lake Lure Packet” and asked if the Town could help provide information on the 
properties that are for sale in Lake Lure and Mr. Baldwin stated that town staff could help. She 
stated that the Chamber is currently looking for someone to help volunteer as an event director to 
help the Chamber with events.  
 

V. TOWN MANAGER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 Town Engineer Kurt Wright and Public Works Director David Arrowood 
provided an update on the hydroelectric facility. Mr. Arrowood reported that the 
big generator is back online as of February 26th and everything has been working 
well. Dean Lindsay was recently hired as the new plant manager and has been in 
the maintenance field for years. Mr. Wright provided an overview of the FM 
Global Risk Report noting that David Peckham, the author of the Report, 
provided his approval. He received three quotes for infrared testing. The first 
quote was from Magnetech out of Ohio. They are a full service provider and a big 
player in the power generation field. Magnetech was recommended by a 
hydroelectric engineer with LaBella Associates. They currently have a low 
backlog and can have items 1-4 on the FM Global Risk Report completed 
(excluding item 3 which has already been completed) by the end of the month. 
Items 5 and 6 must be done in-house as they are O&M preventive maintenance 
procedures. He mentioned that Mr. Peckham has agreed to meet on March 24th to 
review and help make comments and improvements to the O&M Manuals, SOP’s, 
ERP’s, and PMP’s to include in a packet to submit to the League.  

 Mr. Wright explained that proposed Budget Amendment #270, small generator 
repairs of $110,000, involves replacing the poles on the rotor which have reached 
their service life and proposed Budget Amendment #271 for $50,000 is for 
insurance carrier requirements by a third party which is needed to get the 
Treatment Plant in compliance according to the Town’s insurance carrier, NCLM. 
Mr. Wright reported that he is developing a list of alternative insurance service 
providers for dam liability and hydro-elective mechanical equipment and will 
provide that list to the Town.  

 Mr. Baldwin reported that a workshop will be held on March 17thto discuss the 
Dam, the bridge over the Dam, and the sewer. Schnabel Engineering, NCDOT, 
NC DEQ, and LaBella will also be participating.  

 Parks, Recreation, and Lake Director Dean Givens provided an update on the new 
marina stating that construction is on schedule and Jonathan Hinkle, Marathon 
Builders, anticipates the docks to start arriving on April 7th. Mr. Givens also 
provided an update on dredging mentioning that dredging will begin in another 
week or two. He reported that he is evaluating the Morton property along with 
Town Engineer Kurt Wright and Town Attorney William Morgan with hopes to 
begin dredging that property at the end of April or beginning of May. Dredging 
this area will slow or stop sediment from entering into Firefly Cove Bay. He then 



Page 3- Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 

 

reported that Tim Edwards, Tim Edwards Landscaping, has finished grading the 
area for the future amphitheater.  
 

VI. COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS & COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner DiOrio reported that the Utilities Advisory Board did not meet but will 

 meet jointly with Council on the 17th.  
 
Commissioner John Kilby reported the activities of the ABC Board and the Lake 

 Advisory Board. He noted that he was out for both of those meetings and the Mayor 
 attended on his behalf.  

 
Commissioner John Moore reported the activities of the Zoning and Planning Board.  
 
Commissioner Patrick Bryant reported the activities of the Parks and Recreation Board 

 and noted that  the Board of Adjustment and the Lake Structure Appeals Board did not 
 meet. Maureen Bay, PRB member, reported on the 6th Annual Rumble Event stating 
 that there were over 300 participants and about 40 campers in Morse Park. They raised 
 over $4,000 to go directly to conservation and $500 for the Friends of Chimney Rock. 
 She mentioned that about 40 of the volunteers visited the Park on Boys Camp Road on 
 Sunday removing graffiti and picking up trash.  

 

VII. PUBLIC FORUM 
 

Mayor Carol C. Pritchett invited the audience to speak. 
 
Laura Doster, Chamber of Commerce, asked about a timeline for lake lowering in the 

future and Mayor Pritchett stated that one should be available by early summer.  
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Carol C. Pritchett presented the Consent Agenda and asked if any other items 

should be removed before calling for action. 
 
Commissioner Patrick Bryant made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

presented. Commissioner David DiOrio seconded. Therefore, the Consent Agenda incorporating 
the following items was unanimously approved and adopted: 

 
A. Adopt the February 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes and the February 26, 2020 

Special Work Session Minutes 
 



Page 4- Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 

 

B. BA# 270 – Small Generator Repairs 
 

C. BA# 271 – Insurance Carrier Requirements 
 

D. BA# 272 – Lake Lure Dam Work Order No. 4 
 

E. Suspension of Chapter 61: “Peddlers” of the Code of Ordinances for the Hickory 
Nut Gorge 12th Annual Sale on the Trail Event 
 

F. Resolution No. 20-03-10 Amending the South Mountains Regional Hazard 
Mitigation Plan 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-03-10 

 AMENDING THE TOWN OF LAKE LURE  
ANNEX TO THE SOUTH MOUNTAIN REGIONAL  

HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 WHEREAS, The Town of Lake Lure is vulnerable to an array of natural hazards that can 
cause loss of life and damages to public and private property; and 
 WHEREAS, The Town desires to seek ways to mitigate situations that may aggravate 
such circumstances; and 
 WHEREAS, The Town desires to participate in the Department of Homeland Security 
FY 2019 Rehabilitation of High Hazard Potential Dams Program (HHPD); and 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina Emergency Management’s Hazard Mitigation Section and 
The Region IV Office of the Federal Emergency Management Agency have reviewed the 
currently adopted South Mountain Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for compliance with HHPD 
program requirements and recommended amendments to the plan. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Town of Lake Lure hereby: 
 

1. Adopts Amendment One to the Lake Lure Annex to the South Mountain Regional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 

2. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably required to carry out the 
proposed dam risk analysis and identified program of repairs to the extent that such are 
eligible under the FY 2019 HHPD 

3. Agrees to incorporate the salient points of this amendment into the next update of the 
Lake Lure Annex to the South Mountain Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 
 

Adopted on March 10, 2020 
   

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
  
  There were no unfinished business items to discuss.  



Page 5- Minutes of the March 10, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. LAKE LURE ADVENTURE COMPANY CONCESSION AGREEMENT 
REQUEST 

 
  Parks, Recreation, and Lake Director Dean Givens reported that Lake Lure Adventure 
Company is requesting a Concession Agreement with the Town for an additional livery 
commercial boat which exceeds the maximum allowed without a concession agreement.   
 
 Commissioner John Moore made a motion to approve the Concession Agreement from 
Lake Lure Adventure Company, as presented. Commissioner Patrick Bryant seconded and the 
motion carried 4-0. 
 

XI. CLOSED SESSION  
 
 Commissioner John Moore made a motion to enter into Closed Session in Accordance 
with G.S. 143-318.11(a) (3) for the Purpose of Discussing Legal Claims. Commissioner John 
Kilby seconded and the motion carried 4-0.  
 
 While in closed session Council discussed allegations and a potential legal claim.  
 
 Commissioner John Kilby made a motion to return to open session. Commissioner 
Patrick Bryant seconded and the motion carried 4-0. 
 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 
 
 With no further business, Commissioner David DiOrio made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 6:09 p.m. Commissioner Patrick Bryant seconded and the motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ ________________________  
Michelle Jolley,                                                                                  Mayor Carol C. Pritchett 
Town Clerk 



  
 
 
 
 
   
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL JOINT MEETING OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN 
COUNCIL AND UTILITY ADVISORY BOARD HELD TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2020, 
8:00 A.M. AT THE LAKE LURE MUNICIPAL CENTER 
  
PRESENT: Mayor Carol C. Pritchett 
  Mayor Pro Tem John W. Moore 
  Commissioner Patrick Bryant 
  Commissioner David DiOrio 

Commissioner John Kilby   
Shannon Baldwin, Town Manager 
Mitchell Anderson, Community Development Coordinator 
Michelle Jolley, Town Clerk, via telecon 
 

UAB MEMBERS PRESENT VIA TELECON:  
  Wayne Hyatt, Chairman 
  Richard Glassman 
  Don Cason 
  John Chapman 
  Clement Riddle  
 
OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT VIA TELECON:  
  Kurt Wright, SDG Engineering 
  Keith Garbrick, LaBella Associates 
  Brian Houston, LaBella Associates 
  Maurice Walsh, LaBella Associates 
  Seth Robertson, WithersRavenel/WR Martin 
  Mark Landis, Schnabel Engineering 
  Jonathan Pittman, Schnabel Engineering 
  Ken Pohlig, NC DEQ 
  Anita Robertson, NC DEQ-DWI 
 
ABSENT: N/A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Carol Pritchett called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.  
  

II. APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 



Page 2- Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special Joint Town Council and UAB Meeting 
 

 

Commissioner John Moore made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented. 
Commissioner David DiOrio seconded and the motion carried 4-0.   

 III. PRESENTATION BY SCHNABEL ENGINEERING 
 
(Presentation attached) 
 
Mr. Jonathan Pittman conducted a presentation on the Lake Lure Dam rehabilitation 

alternatives. During the presentation he briefed on the existing conditions assessment of the Dam 
mentioning that it is in overall fair condition but does not meet all of NC Dam Safety criteria. 
NC Dam Safety requires a means to potentially drain the reservoir in the event of an emergency 
and currently there is no capability to do that. Addressing Dam Safety requirements and 
extending service life of the Dam by a minimum of 30 years are primary objectives. Other 
primary objectives include maintaining permanent pool levels, protecting existing hydroelectric 
facilities without altering their operation or structure, evaluating options to maintain the public 
access road across the Dam, and minimizing impacts to the Town and community during 
construction.  

 
 Mr. Pittman provided an overview of the two alternatives being considered for 
rehabilitation; a cross-bracing alternative (Alternative 1) and an infilling alternative (Alternative 
2A and 2B). The cross-bracing, or structural bracing, alternative entails adding structural 
concrete and shear walls between the buttresses and arches to increase the strength of the Dam in 
the cross canyon section. He also proposes adding an impermeable liner with this alternative to 
reduce seepage through the lift lines to extend the service life of the existing concrete. The 
primary structure would still be the existing concrete and significant concrete repairs would be 
required for this alternative. The infilling of bays alternative (Alternative 2) turns the existing 
arch buttress sections into a concrete gravity structure. Alternative 2A would have a steeper 
downstream slope and Alternative 2B would have a flatter downstream slope. He feels that 
Alternative 2B would be the better alternative. This alternative raises the new replacement bridge 
to not impact the hydraulics associated with the spillway design.  
 
 Mr. Pittman briefed on additional key structure and construction considerations for all 
rehabilitation alternatives. The intake tower is original to the Dam and does not meet current 
standards for structural stability. Some degree of structural rehab is likely required but additional 
investigation and analysis is needed. The lake would need to be drained for construction. The 
existing spillway gates and trash gate are operable currently but there are some structural 
challenges associated with those. They have not done a structural inspection of those gates but 
they fill it is appropriate to assume those gates need to be replaced. He noted that a reservoir 
drain is required for a potential emergency drawdown and added that there are a host of other 
beneficial advantages with having this drain as well. He stated that some additional analyses and 
investigation is needed to determine the stability of the abutment retaining walls. The 
powerhouse is a very unique structure and will likely need some structural improvements but 
additional investigation is needed. The NCDOT Bridge has been discussed and some concepts 
have been presented. Options have been looked at on how to have a bridge independent of the 



Page 3- Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special Joint Town Council and UAB Meeting 
 

 

Dam and a single lane versus a double lane bridge. A downstream access road has potential for 
impasse due to extreme flooding and alterations to the access road would be required for 
Alternative 2B.  
 
 Mr. Pittman stated that it’s difficult to estimate a service life for the Dam. Alternative 1 
could vary depending on multiple factors but could extend the service life 30-50 years. 
Alternative 1 will have a shorter service life than the infilling alternative and requires more 
maintenance than the other alternatives. He noted that there are technical concerns with 
Alternative 1 in regards to hydraulic performance and seismic and structural performance. 
Alternative 2B extends the overall service life to 75+ years. Both alternatives meets the NC Dam 
Safety criteria. The construction schedule (bridge excluded) for Alternative 1 is 24-30 months 
and Alternative 2B is 30-36 months. This includes a single mobilization and not phasing the 
work.  
 
 Mr. Pittman noted that structural risks are greater for Alternative 1 and foundation risks 
are greater for Alternative 2B. Alternative 1 will have fewer environmental impacts than 
Alternative 2B but permitting requirements are likely similar. Draining the lake is a significant 
environmental consideration. There are no permanent modifications for either alternative but 
reservoir levels would need to be lowered 10-15 feet during the significant portion of the 
construction period for either alternative. The level of maintenance is likely significantly greater 
for Alternative 1. Restricted lake use for potentially multiple seasons for both alternatives. The 
public access road across the Dam would not be there for 2-3 years potentially. Alternative 1 
construction costs are around $30 million (excludes bridge) and around $50 million (excluding 
bridge) for Alternative 2B. Engineering services will likely be about 15% of construction costs.  
 
 Mr. Pittman stated that a new gravity dam downstream of the existing dam would require 
additional environmental permitting but would have a service life of 100+ years. The costs of 
this alternative is in-line with Alternative 2B, around $50 million for construction without hydro. 
Additionally, hydro costs would be around $15-$20 million and engineering services will likely 
be about 15% of construction costs. This alternative cannot be phased out. Complete draining of 
the reservoir would not be required. Demolition of the existing dam could be done underwater 
and is a primary advantage of this alternative. It would reduce operation and maintenance costs 
and would not impact the reservoir. He explained that the most advantageous alternative is the 
dam replacement alternative noting that the rehab alternatives are similar in comparison.  
 
 Mr. Pittman provided an overview of the reservoir drain. Constructing the reservoir drain 
as the initial phase of work allows for critical sewer repairs and funding in-place for sewer 
repairs, provides benefits for lake dredging, and addresses NC Dam Safety requirements and 
reduces dam safety risks. If a rehab alternative is chosen, a remote operated vehicle would be 
needed to further investigate. The town should coordinate with NCDOT and NC Dam Safety to 
agree on a path moving forward.   
 
  

 



Page 4- Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special Joint Town Council and UAB Meeting 
 

 

IV. QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION WITH SCHNABEL ENGINEERING 
 
Mr. Pittman conveyed that they are confident with their cost estimate noting that the costs 

are appropriate based on the work done and the consultants they have brought in to assist. 
Environmentally they do not feel there would be huge mitigation and permitting costs unless 
looking at a dam replacement. Rehab alternatives do not have significant costs associated with 
them. He also stated that doing away with the powerhouse would take away a significant source 
of revenue for the Town. He mentioned that the gravity sections do not meet sliding stability 
which is why anchors would need to be added. The entire structure is in compression due to the 
weight of the water. Mr. Pittman noted that additional discussion would be needed.  

 

V. DISCUSSION BY TOWN COUNCIL, UAB, AND STAFF 
 
During discussion, Commissioner DiOrio stated that Council feels the reservoir drain 

would achieve a level of dam safety and would expose a portion of the backshore area where 
access is needed for the sewer system. Going down an additional 10-12 feet allows access to 
install and maintain the sewer system and benefits as a cost avoidance in the future for 
rehabilitation of the sewer treatment. It would also expose a majority of the lake where 
sedimentation collects. He also noted that lowering the lake with the drain exposes portions of 
the Dam they cannot get to for inspection. Commissioner Kilby added that costs and the 
economic devastation the lake being drained would have on the Town should be considered.  

 

VI. BREAK 
 
Town Council called for a 15 minute break. The meeting reconvened at 10:00 a.m.  
 
Mr. Riddell asked what management, guidelines, rules, and restraints would be imposed 

if the Dam was a FERC (Federal Energy Regulatory Commission) regulated dam. Mr. Pittman 
answered that they would need to talk to FERC about it but there would be some additional dam 
safety requirements, additional inspection requirements, and other administrative requirements 
that are somewhat more stringent that other dam safety requirements. However, design criteria is 
not substantially different. Mr. Wright mentioned that one disadvantage of Alternative 1 is that 
operation and maintenance costs are going to much higher and service life would be much 
shorter compared to other alternatives. Dam replacement would have the lowest O&M cost.  

 
 Mr. Glassen asked if a calculation has been attempted on the loss of power 

generation over a 36 month construction period. Mr. Pittman stated that it was not part of the 
Scope but would be a prudent exercise to go through to decide the most appropriate alternative 
for the Dam.  

 



Page 5- Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special Joint Town Council and UAB Meeting 
 

 

VII. PRESENTATION BY LABELLA ASSOCIATES 
 
(Presentation attached) 
 

  Mr. Reese Walsh conducted a presentation on the On-call Engineering Services 
Technical Memorandum, Task 2 authorization, and road map and provided a project background. 
He explained that the subaqueous sanitary sewer system was completed with the Dam in 1927 
and serves public/private connecting systems in Rumbling Bald, Chimney Rock Village, Blue 
Heron Point, and Lake Lure Village Resort. The system was installed using various methods and 
installed along the existing grade. The Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) was constructed in 
1969 to stop discharge into the Broad River. In 1991 the Dam was renovated and converted to a 
physical-chemical process. Mr. Walsh briefed on some of the recent projects with the Dam and 
showed a video of leaking pipe joints recorded in 2007. He conveyed that the WWTP has a 
legacy of noncompliance due to its inability to meet NPDES effluent limits. There will be social, 
environmental, and economic impacts to the Town if the lake is drained.  
 
 Mr. Walsh provided an overview of the Subaqueous Sanitary Sewer (SASS) alternatives. 
He highlighted on the benefits and liabilities of five alternatives to the SASS: Backshore Low 
Pressure Sewer System, Backshore Series Pump Station System, Backshore HDPE Gravity/Lift 
Station System, Subaqueous Accessible Manholes, and Repair & Rehabilitation Perimeter 
Manholes (partial solution). He stated that the goal is to get the private laterals out of the lake 
with all of the alternatives.  
 
 Mr. Walsh then provided an overview of WWTP alternatives. The three broad categories 
for the Plant alternatives are relocation, rehabilitation, or bulk transfer. The WWTP alternative 
process is not as developed as that for the SASS. Until the major infiltration and inflow issues 
are resolved, the Plant cannot return to a biological process. Mr. Walsh noted that the SASS will 
have to be replaced in phases. The bulk conveyance alternative was originally proposed to 
replace the Plant but this alternative cannot be considered until issues with the SASS have been 
resolved. This alternative would take the WWTP offline and would eliminate the NPDES permit. 
Also, an agreement with Spindale would be needed prior to proceeding with design and 
permitting of this alternative.  
 
 Mr. Walsh recommended Council authorizing Task 2 for alternative analysis. He 
provided an overview of Task 2 – SOC/ER-EID/Alternative Analysis and preliminary task 
descriptions. There will be four tasks as follows: Task 1 – Technical Memorandum (complete); 
Task 2 – SOC, ER-EID, and Alternative Analysis; Task 3 – Design, Permitting, Bidding; and 
Task 4 – Construction Management. Additional tasks included based on funding will be design, 
permitting, bidding and construction management. He stated that construction must be done in 
phases and he provided an overview of those phases. As inflow and infiltration is eliminated, the 
Town may need to rehabilitate the Plant to meet those limitations until it can be converted back 
to a biological plant. A sewer access valve installed in the existing dam would address NC Dam 
Safety requirements, provide a mechanism to drain the lake, provide additional access to the 



Page 6- Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special Joint Town Council and UAB Meeting 
 

 

backshore, provide improved working area for SASS replacement and protection for SASS 
catastrophic failure, and would provide flexibility with dredging. Mr. Walsh pointed out that the 
initial schedule in the Tech Memo was aggressive for construction and that window is rapidly 
closing. He discussed a preliminary schedule noting that they would like to begin immediately 
upon authorization. The schedule will be updated upon completion of Task 2. Task 2 proposal 
costs are $170,000.  

 

VIII. QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION WITH LABELLA ASSOCIATES 
 

 Ken Pohlig of NC Division of Water Quality asked about the dam bottom drain. Mr. 
Walsh explained that it was discovered that the lake could not be lowered as low as previously 
thought. He stated an inverted siphon to draw the water below the spillway was discussed with 
Schnabel which in turn led to a discussion of a drain at a higher elevation. Discussion ensued 
regarding elevation levels and a location for the drain. It was noted that the drain would provide 
access for construction. The better the working condition in the backshore and the more 
elevation to be utilized, the better the terms of many of the alternatives to reduce construction 
costs, enabling more construction to maximize all funding available. Putting this in prior to 
construction of the replacement alternative would immeasurably benefit construction of 
replacement and provide insurance for catastrophic failure and insurances for the Dam. There are 
a lot of benefits with not a lot of liabilities.   

 

IX. DISCUSSION BY TOWN COUNCIL, UAB, AND STAFF 
 

 Mr. Glassen asked if the scope has been investigated for each phase. Mr. Walsh noted 
that this is part of Task 2 and has not been done yet. Mr. Pohlig asked if sewer could proceed 
without the bottom drain and what the costs would be. Mr. Walsh stated the sewer project could 
proceed without the drain but would limit the elevation they could use to access it during the 
future. He noted it would also make construction more difficult and would require more pump 
stations. He stated the costs would be around $2-$2.5 million.   
 
 Anita Robertson with NC DEQ-DWI asked about the environmental impact of draining 
the lake. Mr. Walsh stated social and environmental costs to drain the lake to replace the sewer 
system would be catastrophic. This is not an option they would pursue unless it must be done for 
the Dam.  
 
 Mr. Pohlig asked about the costs associated with improvements needed for the sludge 
holding tank. Mr. Walsh stated that it would have to be looked at as part of Task 2 to identify 
what needs rehabbed or replaced to continue operating the Plant until it can be completely 
rehabilitated or replaced. 
 
 Mr. Wright asked about construction noting that the backshore can be quite muddy. Mr. 
Walsh mentioned that some of the alternatives could be installed by horizontal directional 



Page 7- Minutes of the March 17, 2020 Special Joint Town Council and UAB Meeting 
 

 

drilling. The backshore can be quite muddy and the more water that can be pulled out by the 
sewer access valve, the easier it is for construction. He stated that they want to improve the 
construction area as much as possible. Mr. Wright noted that there appears to be a timing issue 
and questioned what happens if the ultimate grand solution cannot be approved in time. Mr. 
Walsh conveyed that they would like to finish some of the construction this year and coordinate 
with Mr. Wright and the Town to move forward. Their goal is to have the rehabilitation as part of 
their project and work with the Clear Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) as part of the 
process. He stated that they would need to consult with the environmental stakeholders about 
installing a drain, even if it is not required at this time. There is a certain rate at which the lake 
can be lowered and the attempt with the drain is to match that rate by opening the valve to 
maintain the rate down to a certain level for construction. Mr. Pittman added that installation of 
the dam bottom drain would be about three months. Mr. Walsh pointed out that all 
environmental concerns must be addressed first.  
 
 Mr. Walsh explained that the existing WWTP is in the floodplain and replacement of the 
Plant must be done outside of the floodplain. Ms. Robertson noted that environmental evaluation 
is needed prior to any work being done.  

 
ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 
 With no further business, Commissioner Patrick Bryant made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 11:00 a.m. Commissioner David DiOrio seconded and the motion carried 4-0. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ ________________________  
Michelle Jolley,                                                                                  Mayor Carol Pritchett 
Town Clerk 



  
 
 
 
 
   
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE LAKE LURE TOWN 
COUNCIL HELD WEDNESDAY, MARCH 25, 2020, 8:00 A.M. AT THE LAKE LURE 
MUNICIPAL CENTER 
  
PRESENT:   Mayor Carol C. Pritchett, via telecon 
    Mayor Pro Tem John W. Moore, via telecon 
    Commissioner Patrick Bryant, via telecon 
    Commissioner David DiOrio, via telecon 

  Commissioner John Kilby, via telecon  
   
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Shannon Baldwin, Town Manager 
  Mitchell Anderson, Community Development Coordinator 
  David Arrowood, Public Works Director 
  Dean Lindsay, Hydro Plant Manager 
  Dean Givens, Parks, Recreation, & Lake Director 
  Sean Humphries, Police Chief 
  Sam Karr, Finance Director 
  Laura Krejci, Communications Coordinator 
  Michelle Jolley, Town Clerk, via telecon 
  Dustin Waycaster, Fire Chief 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Kurt Wright, SDG Engineering 
VIA TELECON  Seth Robertson, WR Martin/Withers Ravenel 
    Steve Miller, Withers Ravenel 
    Jonathan Pittman, Schnabel Engineering 
    Maurice Walsh, LaBella Associates 
 
ABSENT: N/A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Carol Pritchett called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.  
  

II. APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 
Commissioner John Moore made a motion to approve the Agenda, as presented. 

Commissioner John Kilby seconded and the motion carried 4-0.   
 



Page 2- Minutes of the March 25, 2020 Special Town Council Workshop Meeting 
 

 

 III. REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF THE 10 YEAR CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

 
Mr. Robertson reported that the basic financial analysis has been completed and needs to 

be reviewed to make any necessary revisions. The Town has tremendous needs coming at 
tremendous costs, i.e. dam and sewer projects. The General Fund is in overall good shape; 
however, there are some cash flow issues with the Water, Sewer, and Electric Fund and a few 
options and scenarios will be presented.  

 
Mr. Miller provided an overview of the Water and Sewer Fund Capital Improvements 

Plan (CIP). The grand total of capital outlay for 10 years is a little over $41 million. The vast 
majority is supposed to be paid for by three different debt issuances. He briefed on the existing 
debt for water and sewer and provided line item details on the water and sewer cash flow. Mr. 
Robertson noted that there will be a substantial increase but could potentially be buffered some 
by pushing future projects out 2-3 years. Mr. Miller stated the less revenue received yields a less 
benefit the Town receives by increasing rates. Mr. Baldwin asked that Labella think about 
approaches and strategic moves to pick up extra users and expand user base. He also mentioned 
the idea of bringing in scientific management with asset management planning to move forward. 
He mentioned that $12.5 million for the Subaqueous Collection System rehab and Wastewater 
Treatment Plant will likely carry the Town longer than 2021 as shown in the water and sewer 
CIP. Mr. Wright felt it would be beneficial to share these fund tables with the legislatures to 
show the financial issues the Town faces, noting that a legislative wright-in is needed. Mr. 
Robertson added that a legislative write-in is typically $1-$2 million but opportunities for 
additional funds are possible.  

 
Mr. Miller provided an overview of the Electric Fund CIP. The grand total of the electric 

fund is slightly over $51 million. The most influential cost in this CIP is the dam structural 
renovation. There are two different scenarios for the Dam; rehabilitation or replacement. Mr. 
Pittman pointed out that there is time to shop around for the Dam noting that it is not as urgent as 
the subaqueous sewer system. NC Dam Safety has not provided formal feedback or a formal 
request on a timeframe that the Dam issues need to be completed by. Mr. Baldwin mentioned 
that Schnabel’s reports have de-escalated concerns with the Dam allowing more time to deal 
with those concerns; however, the Town needs to show deliberate moving forward. Adding the 
valve to the Dam as a safety mechanism shows NC Dam Safety that the Town is serious about 
the issues with the Dam. The valve reduces the negative impact on people downstream. 
Commissioner DiOrio felt it is very important to make the Dam renovation its own enterprise 
because the decision is independent of the CIP decisions year-to-year for the Hydro Plant. He 
recommended splitting the Water and Sewer Funds into two separate enterprises. Mr. Robertson 
agreed; however, he explained that both revenue sources are needed to cover the Electric Fund 
expenses. Since the Electric Fund cannot source the Dam, he suggested pulling the Dam out of 
the Electric Fund and putting into the General Fund. There are two potential revenue sources for 
the Dam: ad valorem tax resources and grants. It is much cleaner to keep hydro separate.  

 



Page 3- Minutes of the March 25, 2020 Special Town Council Workshop Meeting 
 

 

Mr. Miller reviewed the cash flow with the Electric Fund noting that the program is 
expected to operate at a loss this year. The primary factor being the high service charges each 
year for the Dam but the Town can control how to take advantage of the water that does fall. Mr. 
Baldwin noted that the Town does not set the rate for what Duke Energy pays the Town and 
cannot control the amount of rain that falls to produce power. He mentioned that the new plant 
director will help to improve operations at the Plant.  

 
Mr. Miller provided an overview of the General Fund CIP. There are quite a few grant 

projects included. The grand total is a little over $13 million. There are 15 different projects with 
several maturing this year, freeing up some capacity for the General Fund. The total of debt 
service for projects this year is around $418,250. Mr. Miller noted that expenses are greater than 
the revenues coming in; a shortfall of $395,000. He pointed out that boat permits are budgeted at 
$430,000 and $90,000 is expected from slip rentals. He stated that recreational fee revenue 
sources can be adjusted if the Town wishes. One option to make up the difference in shortfall is 
to increase the fees to ad valorem taxes. Commissioner DiOrio suggested reducing expenditures. 
Mr. Wright explained that the silt buildup in the bays could be pushed towards the center of the 
lake as a one-time process to decrease expenditures. By pulling the lake down, areas of gathered 
sediment would be exposed and could be spread on the lake bottom to not negatively affect the 
infrastructure. Mr. Baldwin suggested verifying that there will be enough dredging funds 
available to keep the constant dredging process going if the lake is pulled down to move 
sediment around. Mr. Wright mentioned that a masterplan for sediment control has been 
discussed. The installation of sediment traps is a capital cost; however, once installed they 
require regular maintenance which is not currently in the whole paradigm of the Town. 
Commissioner Kilby asked if NC DEQ or the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) have 
given approval from an environmental standpoint to move sediment around in the lake. Mr. 
Givens stated that several years back the Town was granted approval from the USACE to pump 
sediment to the center of the lake. Mr. Anderson reported that confirmation from the Division of 
Water Resources and USACE would be needed before moving sediment. He stated that a permit 
may be needed and he could make some calls to find out.  

 
Mr. Miller provided an overview of cash flow and line items in the General Fund. 

Revenues are expected to be over $7 million this year and $5.5-$6 million each year for the next 
10 years. Expenditures will be growing at a greater rate than revenues due to inflation. The tax 
rate is currently 36 cents on the 100 and expected to increase by 1.5 cent each year. He noted that 
the numbers for dam work were not included into the General Fund and would significantly 
change with those costs added in. Mr. Baldwin pointed out that the draft CIP is based on 
department head guess. Using an asset management plan approach would help increase numbers 
in the CIP. He also mentioned that a tax rate increase is sometimes better to increase above what 
is needed for the next 4-5 years.  

 
 Commissioner DiOrio pointed out that the taxes from fire district and property 
assessments should be broken into separate line items to balance the fire portion based on what 
fire and EMS costs are for two reasons. The CIP for fire is based on fire rating. Matching those 
offers protection to make sure money goes to the right place. If there is a tax increase, residents 



Page 4- Minutes of the March 25, 2020 Special Town Council Workshop Meeting 
 

 

will see why fire has increased. Mr. Baldwin added that it also shows that the Town is providing 
services to people beyond Lake Lure. The Town also provides EMS and rescue to a growing 
state park, in which the Town receives no money for to provide those services.  
 
 Mr. Miller showed a comparison of the Town’s ad valorem taxes to three different peer 
groups with a similar mean household income, within a 50 mile radius to the Town, and similar 
population as Lake Lure. The Town fell below the rates from towns compared within a 50 mile 
radius, the Town’s rates were in the center of the comparison of peer groups with similar mean 
household incomes, and compared in the middle of the range as other towns compared with a 
similar population.   

 

IV. BREAK 
 
Council members took a 10 minute break.  
 

VI. REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF THE FY 20-21 BUDGET PROCESS 
 
Mr. Baldwin noted we should keep in mind the cost of operating the Golf Course and CIP 

items linked to managing the Golf Course as it is managed now. Commissioner Kilby 
commented on how the Golf Course is affected by tourism noting that it is utilized by visitors. 
He suggested keeping a daily log of players, their names and addresses, and acquiring some 
information and history that will help the Town make a decision on whether or not the Golf 
Course is serving the community enough to continue funding every year. Mr. Baldwin noted that 
Mr. Givens is working with the current owners to begin collecting that information at this time as 
they have had this discussion already. Mr. Karr mentioned that they looked at memberships 5-6 
years ago and Lake Lure citizens were around 40%. Mr. Givens noted that this information is 
what he is working on gathering now. Mr. Baldwin commented that this operation is on the radar 
as to whether this asset continues as a golf course or if it changes to another asset to the Town.  

 
Mr. Baldwin also stated that one other area to consider is that property owners paying 

taxes are also paying the water and sewer rates. So if the taxes and rates are increased, that will 
impact and affect the property owners here who are paying both of those rates. Having the 
graphs to show impacts on the residents would be nice to have. Mr. Baldwin reported that one of 
the benefits of a properly conducted asset management plan is the element of risk. Calculating 
risk for each major asset will inform your CIP much better. Mayor Pritchett noted that the asset 
management plan has to be implemented and costs will be incorporated.  

 
Mr. Wright recommended that WR Martin develop two sets of Models. The first set 

"shows all the pain", presents the "good-bad-ugly" of what we are facing. It would also show the 
revenue that can be generated if the Town were to raise the rates/ad valorem taxes to the highest 
in the State. That will be a tool that the Town can use to show advocates/legislators that the 
Town cannot fund all the infrastructure improvements on their own. The second Model is the 



Page 5- Minutes of the March 25, 2020 Special Town Council Workshop Meeting 
 

 

Town doing what it can to keep the General Fund solvent and pay what they can to improve the 
sewer system.  

 
Mr. Wright noted that a portion of the operation budget should be set aside each year to 

start funding an asset management plan. This is a constant updating of the Town’s assets on an 
annual basis. Mayor Pritchett stated she is hugely in favor of an asset management plan and felt 
that moving forward we should embrace it.  

 
Mr. Baldwin asked that Mr. Robertson lay out next steps on the process in the calendar. 

Mr. Robertson felt that they could meet our calendar and the next step is to get feedback on the 
next scenario and funding models, phasing, timing, and several other aspects. They will then 
bring another presentation forward for further review and discussion. He stated he could send out 
a follow-up email on items discussed today and then a brief smaller meeting could be held to nail 
down alternatives and he could provide written feedback on scenarios. Commissioner DiOrio 
asked to incorporate two scenarios when incorporating the Dam renovation into the General 
Fund: impact on tax rate assuming the Dam renovation and rate associated to cover the Dam 
work.  

 
ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 
 With no further business, Commissioner David DiOrio made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 10:51 a.m. Commissioner John Kilby seconded and the motion carried 4-0. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ ________________________  
Michelle Jolley,                                                                                  Mayor Carol Pritchett 
Town Clerk 
 



  
 
 
 
 
   
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP TELECONFERENCE MEETING OF THE 
LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL HELD WEDNESDAY, APRIL 15, 2020, 2:00 P.M. AT 
THE LAKE LURE MUNICIPAL CENTER 
  
PRESENT:   Mayor Carol C. Pritchett 
    Mayor Pro Tem John W. Moore 
    Commissioner Patrick Bryant 
    Commissioner David DiOrio 

  Commissioner John Kilby 
  Shannon Baldwin, Town Manager 
  Michelle Jolley, Town Clerk 
  Sam Karr, Finance Director 
  Kurt Wright, SDG Engineering 

 
ABSENT:   N/A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mayor Carol Pritchett called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.  
  

II. APPROVE THE AGENDA 
 
Commissioner John Moore made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented. 

Commissioner John Kilby seconded and the motion carried 4-0.   
 

 III. INFRASTRUCTURE WORKSHOP WITH SDG ENGINEERING TO 
SECURE FUNDING FOR INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
Mr. Baldwin provided an overview stating that the Town cannot self-fund its sewer 

project, dam renovation or a new dam and outside resources are needed to help. He noted that 
Mr. Wright put together a proposal to help lobby for needed funds. Mr. Wright then put together 
a list of PR firms and lobbyists for Council to review to help the Town in its efforts to lobby for 
funds.   

 
Mr. Wright shared his thoughts based on his research. He mentioned that he randomly 

called NP Strategy from the list and had a lengthy conversation with Ernie Pearson. Mr. Pearson 
was very enthusiastic and has a lot of connections in western NC. He expressed intimate 



Page 2- Minutes of the April 15, 2020 Special Town Council Workshop Teleconference 
Meeting 
 

 

knowledge of Lake Lure, the area surrounding Lake Lure and the larger western NC region 
around Lake Lure and has over 40 years of experience.  

Mr. DiOrio noted that a decision needs to be made on whether to replace or repair the 
Dam first. Mr. Baldwin conveyed that there are four alternatives relative to the dam: do nothing, 
renovate as is, a new dam without hydro, or a new dam with hydro. Mr. Wright shared two 
recent news reports regarding two trillion dollar infrastructure packages as a result of the 
coronavirus pandemic. He pointed out that stimulus payments were sent out in 2009 and only 
minimum information was needed to get money. He mentioned that enough money could be 
available that building a new hydro-plant may not be an issue. Commissioner DiOrio commented 
that a new dam is needed because the current one has met its service life. Mr. Wright added that 
a new sewer system is also needed.  

 
Mr. Wright explained that there may be green energy components in the infrastructure 

bill noting that the Dam is green energy. The Town could potentially get 150 million for both the 
sewer and the Dam. Commissioner DiOrio asked how long it would take Schnabel Engineering 
to put forth a proposal and Mr. Wright stated 30 days. Mr. Wright pointed out that the Town 
does not have the funds to repair or replace the Dam and therefore he suggested lobbying money 
to replace. Commissioner Bryant asked how much direct experience Schnabel and LaBella has 
lobbying for funding versus capital investment and if they have lobbying experience. Mr. Wright 
stated that the two firms may not have much experience but that they are both successful in 
getting projects done. Mr. Wright recommended a committee formed to interview firms. Then 
put the firms into two categories: firms who are well connected with state and federal legislatures 
and firms with high credentials with large success but no connections with legislatures. He 
suggested looking at the firms who have legislature connections. Once someone is chosen, he 
suggested having a meeting with them to see what information they need from the Town.  

 
Mayor Pritchett stated that the scope of work needs to be well defined and a 

determination should be made as to whether or not Council wants a dam with or without a hydro-
plant before entering into a relationship with a PR firm that will represent Lake Lure in lobbying 
for infrastructure funds. Council members agreed that they would feel comfortable with tasking 
Mr. Wright to select a few firms to bring back as a recommendation. Mayor Pritchett suggested 
looking at the rates based on the needs of the Town before selecting a firm.  

 
Commissioner Moore made a motion to form a committee with Kurt Wright, David 

DiOrio, Patrick Bryant, and Shannon Baldwin to get started on interviewing for a PR firm and to 
bring in other members as needed. Commissioner Kilby seconded and the motion carried 4-0.  

 
Commissioner DiOrio suggested informing folks at the state level of the Town’s needs 

and what the Town is facing so that Lake Lure is kept on the radar and high priority list. Once 
the infrastructure bill starts to firm up, the Senator’s staff will start to ask the State what their 
priorities are. Mr. Baldwin noted that the April 16th Special Town Council Teleconference 
Meeting was not needed and could be cancelled and the newly formed committee could meet at 
the same date and time instead and all agreed.  



Page 3- Minutes of the April 15, 2020 Special Town Council Workshop Teleconference 
Meeting 
 

 

 
Mr. Wright reported that he met with Magnatech Tuesday and noted that items 1-4 of the 

FM Global Report have been completed and a report will be ready before meeting with David 
Peckham on Tuesday. The gate hoist work is scheduled to start on Monday. Dam Operator Dean 
Lindsay has coordinated with Public Works Director David Arrowood and Parks, Recreation and 
Lake Director Dean Givens to go out on the lake with a large barge and excavator to lift the hoist 
up. This will take 2-3 days and should be certified by Friday, May 1st. Mr. Baldwin noted that the 
operational side of the budget is almost done and we are still waiting on CIP information from 
WR Martin. We will come back for a review hopefully sometime in May. Mr. Baldwin noted 
that there are two possible workshops: May 4th and May 26th for review of the CIP.  

 
ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 
 With no further business, Commissioner John Kilby made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting at 3:00 p.m. Commissioner Patrick Bryant seconded and the motion carried 4-0. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ ________________________  
Michelle Jolley,                                                                                  Mayor Carol Pritchett 
Town Clerk 
 



  
 
 
 
 
   
MINUTES OF THE TOWN COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
THURSDAY, APRIL 16, 2020, 2:00 P.M. VIA TELECONFERENCE 
  
PRESENT:   Chairman David DiOrio 
    Patrick Bryant, Board Member 

  Shannon Baldwin, Town Manager 
  Michelle Jolley, Town Clerk 
  Kurt Wright, SDG Engineering 
  Laura Krejci, Communications Specialist 

 
ABSENT:   N/A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Town Council voted on Wednesday, April 15, 2020 to form a subcommittee to review PR 
firms to help with lobbying funds for infrastructure needs for the Town.  
 
 The subcommittee meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m.   
 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 The agenda was approved unanimously.   

 

 III. PR FIRM REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. DiOrio commented that a lobbyist, as opposed to a PR Firm, would be more 

beneficial in that they would have more connections on the federal level to help lobby for 
infrastructure bills. Mr. Wright stated that he compiled a list of PR firms based on Council 
discussion during their meeting on April 15th (document attached). He spoke with Ernie 
Pearson, NP Strategy, who expressed intimate knowledge of Lake Lure and the surrounding area 
in western NC. Ernie Pearson has worked with the NC Chamber of Commerce and has over 40 
years of experience.  

 
Mr. Wright commented that he has worked with Green Engineering in the past and feels 

that Leo Green, Jr., CEO of Green Engineering, is the most all around confident engineer he has 
ever met. Mr. Green has over 50 years experience in all types of engineering, concentrating on 
wastewater. In the past, he was appointed by Governor Hunt and served on the EMC Committee 
for 15 years. Mr. Green recommended that representatives of Lake Lure contact the NC 



Page 2- Minutes of the April 16, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

legislature that they are most familiar with and ask if they could give a recommendation for a 
lobbyist or PR firm. 

 
During discussion Mr. Baldwin commented that he would try and make contact with 

Congressman Patrick McHenry’s office and other points of contact he has with the state 
legislature to get recommendations on a PR firm or lobbyist and would bring a list of 
recommendations back to share with the Committee. Mr. Wright suggested a face-to-face 
meeting in Lake Lure with the PR firm or lobbyist that Council chooses to discuss the Town’s 
needs. Mr. DiOrio suggested that Mr. Baldwin convey the message that the Town is in need of a 
new dam and is struggling with the existing sewer system and mention that there is a potential 
infrastructure bill coming available in which the Town could use help at the state level to try and 
obtain this money. Mr. Wright shared how he helped the Town of Spindale in 2009 get stimulus 
funding to fund town projects during the recovery reinvestment act. He stated that he believes the 
government will offer money for infrastructure needs in order to help the economy, noting that 
the Dam could be converted into a green energy project. Mr. Baldwin asked that Mr. Wright put 
together a schedule of times to meet and speak with firms. Mr. Wright stated that he would 
choose two firms and add additional ones from recommendations received from Mr. Baldwin’s 
contacts. He suggested that committee members create a document to distribute to the firms to be 
interviewed with a few sentences on how the Town would quantify success. Mr. DiOrio 
suggested simply stating that securing federal dollars for a new dam in Lake Lure and getting 
that federally guaranteed by grants and/or loan or a combination of the two would be a success. 
Mr. Wright suggested taking the chosen firm out on the lake to give them an idea of what the 
Town is facing in order for them to be a better advocate. He stated that he believes strongly that 
there will be an infrastructure bill available in the next two years. Mr. DiOrio noted that the 
sewer system could not be put on hold for two years and suggested moving forward to get it 
going by this winter. He added that phase two and three could possibly be added into the 
infrastructure bill.  

 
Mr. DiOrio commented that the initial meeting with WR Martin brought to light that 

funding for the Dam is beyond the Town’s capacity. He stated that the Dam is at the end of its 
service life and a new dam is needed. He noted that there would probably be a single point of 
contact at the state level and it would be nice to know who that is. Mr. Wright stated that it 
would be nice to have a good graphic of the French Broad River and the Rocky Broad River and 
how the dam services a multi county area. Mr. DiOrio suggested noting that point when Ms. 
Krejci puts together the Strategic Communications Plan. Mr. DiOrio mentioned that each Senator 
will have a point person that will be driving the priorities for the infrastructure bill and talking 
directly to them would be beneficial. Mr. Baldwin stated he would try and find out who that 
person is. He mentioned that we may have to end up hiring a lobbyist in Raleigh to help. Mr. 
Wright noted that an investment in Lake Lure is an investment in the County also and this is the 
message that the Town needs to promote.  

 
 
 



Page 3- Minutes of the April 16, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 
 
 With no further business, Mr. David DiOrio made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 
3:15 p.m. Mr. Patrick Bryant seconded and the motion carried 4-0. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________  
Michelle Jolley,      
Town Clerk 
 



  
 
 
 
 
   
MINUTES OF THE TOWN COUNCIL SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING HELD FRIDAY, 

APRIL 24, 2020, 8:00 A.M. VIA ZOOM 
  
PRESENT:   David DiOrio, Board Member - Commissioner 
    Patrick Bryant, Board Member - Commissioner 

  Shannon Baldwin, Board Member - Town Manager 
  Kurt Wright, Board Member - SDG Engineering 
  Laura Krejci, Communications Specialist 
  Michelle Jolley, Town Clerk   

 
ABSENT:   N/A 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Mr. DiOrio made a motion to open the subcommittee meeting at 8:15 a.m. Mr. Bryant 
seconded and all voted in favor. Mr. Baldwin and Ms. Krejci were not present until later in the 
meeting.  
 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 Mr. DiOrio moved to approve an amended agenda, removing the interview with Moore & 
Van Allen. Mr. Wright seconded and all voted in favor.  

 

 III. ORIENTATION AND PREPARATION FOR MORNING INTERVIEWS 
 
Committee members briefly prepared for the morning interview. Mr. DiOrio noted that 

our on-call engineer is ready to go with the sewer system but the Town does not have the 
resources and needs funds from the potential infrastructure bill. He felt that once legislature 
hears that Lake Lure has a substantial issue it will capture their attention. Major funding comes 
from tax payers beyond Lake Lure. Legislature may require some changes in order to get that 
funding. The Committee previewed the interview questions. Mr. Wright stated that he believes 
there is going to be an infrastructure bill which is the only way the Town can get a new dam. A 
lobbyist will be positioning the Town for a new dam.  

 
Mr. Baldwin and Ms. Krejci joined the meeting at 8:30 a.m.  
 
Mr. DiOrio noted that the firms have been provided interview questions ahead of time. 

Mr. Wright noted that Patrick McHenry’s name was mentioned by the company that declined to 



Page 2- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

interview which made him very curious. Mr. Baldwin reported that he received a response back 
from one of his contacts, Roger Hayden, noting that they would not be interviewing. Mr. Wright 
stated that the influence and impact of Lake Lure goes well beyond its border and the Town can 
help Rutherford County to emerge. Mr. Baldwin pointed out that Rutherford County is split 
between two congressional districts and felt that a relationship with McHenry’s district is good 
for the County and can work towards the Town’s advantage since the County is split between 
two districts. District 11 is a mountainous district and those folks will have a different mindset 
and set of issues due to the topography and cultural differences. Understanding the subtle 
differences is beneficial when starting to lobby for funds. Mr. Wright pointed out that when it 
comes to the potential infrastructure funding bill, “renewable” energy or “green” energy might 
be mentioned and we should be sensitive to that. The hydroelectric facility will qualify as either 
one. Mr. DiOrio mentioned the funds may get bundled in different areas and we need this as a 
priority at the state level to get that money as it becomes available. Mr. Wright reported that the 
Dam could fall under the Corps of Engineers because of the flooding aspect which could be 
huge. Mr. Baldwin added that Lake Lure is unique in that no one else has a subaqueous sewer 
system under the lake. A sewer line break would affect both the lake and the sewer system. Mr. 
Wright noted that a confidentiality notice requirement should have been added prior to 
interviews.   

 

  IV. BREAK 
 
The Committee took a 15 minute break.  
 

 V. INTERVIEW WITH NEXSEN PRUET/NP STRATEGY 
 
 Members with NP Strategy introduced themselves: Ernie Pearson (primary 
spokesperson), Erin Sanders, Rocky Lane, and Tom Johnson.  
 
 Mr. Pearson shared some projects his company has helped lobby funds for but noted that 
they have not worked with any dam projects. He has worked with private-public partnerships and 
some were wastewater treatment facilities. He noted that a public-private partnership with Duke 
Energy might be logical for the hydroelectric component but this bears some exploration. Mr. 
DiOrio added that it is very unusual for a municipality to operate a power plant but the Town is 
operating and has been selling power to Duke Energy since the early 60’s. He conveyed that we 
are going down the path of a new dam with the potential to leverage renewable energy with a 
new power plant and a public-private venture to get that dam. However, when a new dam is built 
there is a certain amount of oversight that will be taken out of the Town’s hands. The lake level 
needs to be kept at a recreational level. Mr. Pearson agreed mentioning that he has some 
background in utility rate litigation and is familiar with those matters. If Lake Lure loses 
recreational aspect they lose everything and he understands that. Mr. DiOrio explained that Lake 
Lure is high impact for Rutherford County because of the tax base and is also the commerce 
corridor leading to District 11, which is the gateway to commerce of western NC. Leveraging 



Page 3- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

both corridors is needed. Mr. Pearson stated that the congressional delegation in western NC and 
the NC Representative for appropriations is David Price and he knows him. He’s a democrat who 
is interested in green energy and if an infrastructure project is tied to green energy it will spark 
his attention. Mr. Wright noted that the only way to get a new dam is to get major funding from 
an infrastructure bill. Regarding that type of funding from an infrastructure bill, it may be that 
using the “renewable” or “green” energy component (which is legitimate) is a good way to shape 
the opinions of the local representatives who can help get the funding. It helps sell the argument 
for Lake Lure. Renewable energy is a strong component to this. Mr. Pearson mentioned that this 
is a balance and is a regional issue. There are four centroids of growth: Cherokee area, 
Boone/Blowing Rock area, Asheville area, and Lake Lure/Chimney Rock/Hickory Nut Gorge 
area. He stated that he would also add Burke County and Transylvania County as the fourth 
centroid noting that they have many contacts there. The more people you pull together the bigger 
your team is. An economic impact analysis will show that if something is not done there will be 
an interruption with travel and tourism in the entire region. He stated that they would then gather 
letters of support from other towns and organizations in the region. An economic impact analysis 
is important. Most visitors come to visit the region, not just one area. He stated that the Town 
must raise an alarm bell to motivate this region, congressman, and senators for support but not in 
a way that would create a panic to people who live around Lake Lure.  
 
 Mr. DiOrio noted that the Dam is in fair condition and not in imminent failure; however, 
it does not meet modern standards because it is not a modern dam. If it gets to a point and 
degrades down from fair condition, the Town would have to drain the lake to build a new dam. 
We need everything in place to go from a full pond dam to a brand new dam without having a six 
year gap to drain the lake which is an economic impact issue. Mr. Wright added that the 
engineers are predicting a significant problem in the future and we need to fully inform state 
legislatures so that they are aware. Mr. Baldwin explained the Town’s history with past 
engineers. The Dam is in fair condition but is reaching the end of its service life and has to be 
replaced. We need funding from the state and feds as it serves the entire region.  
 
 Mr. Pearson pointed out that Mark Bellissimo, managing partner with the Tryon 
International Equestrian Center at Tryon Resort in Mill Spring and owner of The Lodge on Lake 
Lure, has direct and heavy ties into the Trump administration. Mark Meadows, Chief of Staff to 
President Trump and a former representative for North Carolina’s 11th District does too noting 
that they can leverage them. He stated that if he needs to get somebody in Congress he has 
contacts. He also commented on other contacts he has at the state level. Mr. Pearson conveyed 
that if they represent the Town one critical component needed is a thorough debriefing session to 
understand where the Town is. Mr. Wright asked about their fee framework. Mr. Pearson stated 
they cannot do an assessed fee as lobbying on an assessed fee is prohibited. Therefore they 
would do an hourly or flat fee basis but would need to sit down with the Town to get an 
understanding of what the Town is looking for and a starting time. Once they understand a scope 
of work they can then give a flat fee.  
 
 Mr. DiOrio asked about the potential for an infrastructure bill and if the effort needs to be 
on the horizon. Mr. Pearson suggested moving forward regardless. He stated that things have 



Page 4- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

become so partisan and there is a lot of interest in infrastructure which is bipartisan. He 
recommended that Town start moving forward with work now and then tying the bill in when 
funds are available. He noted that Ms. Sanders would create a contact list on who contacted 
whom which is extremely important in a multiparty team so that everyone knows who is doing 
what. Mr. DiOrio noted that a strategic communications plan has already been started. This 
would be forwarded to Ms. Sanders to look over in order to provide some feedback. Mr. Pearson 
noted that Ms. Sanders will be focusing on the messaging. Ms. Sanders stated that Jean Cecil 
Frick is one of her partners and she owns property in Lake Lure, as well as Barry Wyn. She can 
help rally some of the local residents as well. Mr. Pearson stated that he could meet at a later 
time to talk more in depth. He noted that he stays very busy but is really motivated for this. He 
loves innovative challenges and winning. Committee members thanked the members of NP 
Strategy for their time.  
 
 The Committee briefly discussed their thoughts from the interview. Mr. DiOrio 
mentioned that they have good connnections but is not clear on how they handle their fees. Mr. 
Baldwin stated he would like to get Ms. Sanders’ feedback on the strategic communications plan 
before choosing a firm. He felt that Mr. Pearson has the right personality to help speak with 
legislature and lobby for town funds. He likes that they understand the area and the fact that they 
are streaming together the idea of tourism. Mr. Wright suggested an email to let them know that 
this unofficial document is confidential. Mr. DiOrio stated that he likes the connection they have 
with DEQ; a former commissioner of DEQ and having experience with wastewater treatment is a 
plus. He also liked his contacts he has with Mark Bellissimo. Mr. Wright stated that he also likes 
that Mr. Pearson has negotiated for energy crisis in all the military bases. Mr. Bryant suggested 
getting some of the other advisory boards focused on pushing their energy on these avenues to 
strengthen our position.  

 

 VI. LUNCH 
 
The Committee took a lunch break. 
 

 VII. ORIENTATION AND PREPARATION FOR AFTERNOON INTERVIEWS 
 
The Committee reconvened at 1:00 p.m. to move forward with the next interview. 
 

 VIII. INTERVIEW WITH THE POLICY GROUP 
 
 Members of The Policy Group, Steve Metcalf and John Metcalf, introduced themselves. 
Mr. Wright briefed on Lake Lure’s very unique infrastructure issues with the sewer system in the 
lake and the aging dam that needs replaced, conveying that a community of 1,200 cannot fund a 
new dam.  
 



Page 5- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

 Mr. Steve Metcalf explained that he understands infrastructure issues as he was a 
previous Town Manager with Buncombe County and faced many infrastructure challenges while 
there. He stated that they want to learn more about Lake Lure’s specific issues and problems to 
try and come up with a an understanding to develop a strategy. Mr. Metcalf noted that he also 
served three terms in the State Senate and has lobbied for the state government for the last 16 
years. His son, John Metcalf, has been working alongside him for the past 10 years. He pointed 
out that he has had many employees who have branched off of his firm to start their own and he 
still maintains those contacts.  
 
 Mr. DiOrio briefed on the details of Lake Lure’s infrastructure needs noting that the Dam 
is still safe but is nearing the end of its service life. He explained that there is a potential 
infrastructure bill at the federal level that may filter down to the states that would help fund a 
new dam. The Town also needs additional resources for the sewer system. The Town is needing 
assistance with articulating a message to be prepared to lobby for federal and state funds.  
 
 Mr. Metcalf commented that he understands that the lake is the most important asset and 
all of western NC is impacted as well as the Town’s property values. He mentioned that sewer 
problems are tough problems and we need state legislature to understand the importance of the 
Town’s issues. The proximity to Chimney Rock and a state park is an advantage. Mr. Baldwin 
pointed out that the monolith, the rock itself, is in the Town of Lake Lure and the view shed from 
the Rock is the lake. If the lake goes away, the view shed is drastically impaired. Mr. Metcalf 
noted that if the federal government comes out with an infrastructure bill the State will be 
designated as the distributor and members of the NC general assembly will come into play as it 
affects their districts. Mr. John Metcalf underscored what had been said about the view shed and 
how it would be significantly impacted noting that a large net should be tasked at a state effort. 
He stated he has a great relationship with clients of his in the western delegation to help steer 
head the effort noting that the message must be broad. Consequences if the Town does not get 
the funding needs to be discussed. Mr. Metcalf noted that they have great relationships with the 
Department of Cultural Resources mentioning that there many issues that a number of folks 
would probably take interest in.  
 
 Mr. DiOrio pointed out that the Town is in District 11 but the County is split into 2 
districts; District 11 and District 5. The Town is the commercial gateway to the western 
mountains between Charlotte and Asheville. Lake Lure’s tax base keeps Rutherford County 
afloat which could be used as leverage. Mr. Steve Metcalf commented that he was in the State 
Senate with Representative Fox and knows her well. Mr. DiOrio pointed out that The Town 
needs the most help at the political level for the awareness to hopefully flow some resources to 
help execute what the Town has already established and knows to do. Mr. Baldwin stated that a 
strategic communications piece has already been put together that provides that messaging and 
communication framework to be ready when the doors open. Outside resources are needed as the 
Town cannot self-fund the debt service. An approach to get outside funding from our elected 
officials is needed.  
 



Page 6- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

 Mr. Wright explained that the Town has legacy issues with the Dam and sewer system. 
Schnabel Engineering was hired for the Dam piece and their work is strong and unquestionable. 
The Town has great representation and more than adequate support when it comes to the Dam. 
The Town has hired a new engineering firm, Labella Associates, to help with the sewer piece and 
they are engaged in preparing a recommendation but are still evaluating alternatives. They will 
provide robust engineering support. WithersRavenel was hired to help with the financial piece. 
They have a 10+ year Capital Improvement Plan to show what needs to be done to properly 
operate the Town and what it is going to cost. He stated that we are going to ask them to do a 
comparative study with other towns of the same size of the ad valorem taxes, sewer rates, and 
water rates to see where Lake Lure ranks. Then a paper study will be done to see how much 
additional money would be generated per year from a rate increase. What the Town generates is 
a drop in the bucket of what is needed and this will be a tool to show this to the elected officials. 
1,100 people cannot replace the sewer system under the lake and build a new dam. Mr. Metcalf 
noted it must be demonstrated that the Town cannot support these infrastructure improvements. 
The alternative is that we lose Lake Lure.  
 
 Mr. John Metcalf asked how many seasonal people come through Lake Lure and Mr. 
Bryant stated that numbers could easily push up towards a million. He noted that this number is 
hard to track but the Lake Lure Flowering Bridge and State Park has a good track on those. Mr. 
John Metcalf commented that he has a PR background and feels that they know all the right 
players on the state level to get Lake Lure’s message out there. He would like to broaden the 
effort to be more of a grassroots campaign. He feels that NC DEQ and Secretary Hamilton would 
be very interested. Mr. Steve Metcalf stated that the Chamber of Commerce and tourism groups 
should all be involved as well. Mr. DiOrio noted that the county level is the area we have the 
weakest support from. Mr. DiOrio asked if the Town should start this dialogue and move 
forward now if an infrastructure bill is absent and if so, how to structure a partnership in moving 
forward. Mr. Steve Metcalf recommended starting now. Mr. John Metcalf noted that the first 
thing he would do is call politicians Ralph Hise and David Rogers to make sure they are in 
100%. As we start to get support from the State we will need local members more than neutral. 
Mr. Wright mentioned that the legislature is responsible because the infrastructure needs are 
beyond the Town’s means. Mr. DiOrio stated the Dam is doing its job but if it continues to 
degrade and the lake has to be drained for years, it has an interim period of economic impact. 
There is an urgency but not an emergency. Mr. Metcalf stated they would be excited about this 
project as it is a western NC project. 
 
 Mr. Steve Metcalf explained that they do a monthly retainer. He stated the fees generally 
run around $5,000 a month but everything is negotiable. Mr. John Metcalf added that they pride 
themselves in communication and would provide weekly updates and calls. They feel email 
communications and calls are necessary even if there is an uneventful week. Mr. John Metcalf is 
located in Raleigh and Mr. Steve Metcalf is located in Weaverville. Mr. Steve Metcalf stated that 
he was raised in Candler and his dad was in the textile industry. He was the first elected county 
manager in Buncombe. Committee members thanked them for their time. Mr. Baldwin asked if 
they would look over the Town’s Strategic Communications Plan and provide some feedback 
and they stated that they would. 



Page 7- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

 
  

 

 IX. DEBRIEFING 
 

 Committee members discussed the interviews. Mr. Baldwin stated that he really liked this 
group. Steve Metcalf was a county manager and he feels he understand the relationship between 
local government and state representatives. He understands that we do not want local opposition 
when we go to lobby. He feels that Steve Metcalf brings the wisdom and understands politics at 
an intuitive visceral level and John Metcalf brings youth, energy, and ideas. They are from this 
area and understand the lay of the land and know the local politicians. They undertook Harrah’s 
which is huge. He stated that Steve Metcalf understands heavy infrastructure. Mr. DiOrio 
commented that a more focused approached and fewer people in the loop is an extinctive 
advantage noting that Steve Metcalf has those connections in Raleigh and is in the loop. Mr. 
Baldwin felt that Steve Metcalf has the ability to speak legislature and not annoy them. Mr. 
Wright pointed out that Steve Metcalf is good with the legislative piece and Ernie Pearson would 
work stronger at the federal level. He did not feel that we would need connections at the federal 
level noting that connections at the state level is the missing link. He did not believe Ernie 
Pearson would be as hands-on as Steve Metcalf would be. He also felt that Ernie Pearson’s fees 
would be higher.  
 
 Mr. Baldwin pointed out that there is a lot of expertise and synergy in this town which is 
of great benefit. He mentioned that if the Town chose the Metcalf’s and spends $60,000 in 12 
months, so much would be learned in how to be successful in securing money. Then at the end of 
the year we could talk with Ernie Pearson and tell him what areas to focus on. He mentioned that 
he would rather start off small and strategic and learn versus spending a bunch of money upfront. 
Mr. DiOrio stated we could leverage all their contacts in the near term to be a good investment 
upfront. Mr. Baldwin pointed out that Steve Metcalf represented Buncombe County as a state 
representative and knows his way around Raleigh. He has a great network and is a senior 
member who has been around awhile and has a credibility. Mr. DiOrio suggested providing a 
recommendation to Council. He mentioned that the first order of business is to make state 
contacts. The money is probably going to come to the state and be filtered.  
 
Mr. Baldwin noted provided an update from yesterday’s emergency management team meeting. 
The Mayor will be signing a new declaration amending the existing one to open the lake back up 
and to free up the golf course. He stated he would summarize the meeting discussions and send 
to everyone in order to get feedback to the Mayor before she crafts a new amendment document. 
Mr. DiOrio recommended not opening up vacation rentals until phase two as they are the highest 
risk to the local population.  

 
ADJOURN THE MEETING 

 



Page 8- Minutes of the April 24, 2020 Town Council Subcommittee Teleconference Meeting 
 

 

 With no further business, the Committee members unanimously agreed to adjourn the 
meeting at 2:33 p.m.  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________  
Michelle Jolley,      
Town Clerk 
 



LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Emergency Purchase of fuel tank pump that needed to be replace before season. 
 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 
Agenda Location: Consent  
Item Number: D  
Department: Capital Outlay   
Contact: Sam Karr, Finance Director    
Presenter: Sam Karr, Finance Director   

BRIEF SUMMARY: Purchase a replacement fuel pump at town marina. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:   Approve budget amendment 
# 274. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  Transfer from Fund Balance 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Budget Amendment Form 

STAFF’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  Accept budget amendment # 274. 

 



  Budget Amendment #274    _ 

 

TOWN OF LAKE LURE 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 Be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Lake Lure that the 
following amendment be made to the budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020: 
 
Department:  Marina-Capital 
 
Purpose:   To budget new replacement fuel pump at Marina before being of tourist 

season.  Emergency Purchase. 
 
 Section 1.  To amend the General Fund, the expenditures are to be changed as 
follows: 
 

Line 
Item 

Account 
Number 

Amount 
Decrease 

Amount 
Increase 

Amended 
Budget 

 
567 

 
10-80000 

 

 
 

 
$29,250 

 

 
      $29,250 

     

 
 To provide the additional expenditures for the above, the following revenues will 
be increased: 
 
 Account Name:  Transfer From Fund Balance 
 Account Number:  10-398604 
 Amount:  $29,250 
 
 Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget 
amendment, and that the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
 ____________________________________  __________________ 
 Finance Officer      Date  
 
 Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance 
Officer and Town Auditor for their direction. 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 



LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Hire engineer to help select Lobbyist for the Town. 
 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 
Agenda Location: Consent  
Item Number: D  
Department: Capital Outlay   
Contact: Sam Karr, Finance Director    
Presenter: Sam Karr, Finance Director   

BRIEF SUMMARY: Town Council will pursue a lobbyist and will hire an engineer to help with 
the selection. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:   Approve budget amendment 
# 275. 

FUNDING SOURCE:  Transfer from Fund Balance 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Budget Amendment Form 

STAFF’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  Accept budget amendment # 275. 

 



  Budget Amendment #275    _ 

TOWN OF LAKE LURE 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 Be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Lake Lure that the 
following amendment be made to the budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020: 
 
Department:  Administration-Lobbyist Selection Committee 
 
Purpose:   To budget engineer to help town council pursue and participate in a 

Lobbyist Section Committee. 
 
 Section 1.  To amend the General Fund, the expenditures are to be changed as 
follows: 
 

Line 
Item 

Account 
Number 

Amount 
Decrease 

Amount 
Increase 

Amended 
Budget 

 
190 

 
10-413000 

 

 
 

 
$3,750 

 

 
      $103,750 

     

 
 To provide the additional expenditures for the above, the following revenues will 
be increased: 
 
 Account Name:  Transfer From Fund Balance 
 Account Number:  10-398604 
 Amount:  $3,750 
 
 Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget 
amendment, and that the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
 ____________________________________  __________________ 
 Finance Officer      Date  
 
 Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance 
Officer and Town Auditor for their direction. 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 



LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Close out Greenline Fund.  Zero out Fund by parent fund-Water/Sewer Fund 
 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 
Agenda Location: Consent  
Item Number: D  
Department: Sewer/Greenline   
Contact: Sam Karr, Finance Director    
Presenter: Sam Karr, Finance Director   

BRIEF SUMMARY: Requirement to close out retiring fund to zero balance funded by parent 
fund.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:   Approve budget amendment 
# 276. 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  Transfer from Fund Balance 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Budget Amendment Form 

STAFF’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  Accept budget amendment # 276. 

 



  Budget Amendment #276    _ 

TOWN OF LAKE LURE 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 Be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Lake Lure that the 
following amendment be made to the budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020: 
 
Department:  Green Line 
 
Purpose:   To close out Green Line Fund; parent fund-Water/Sewer to reimburse 

fund to zero. 
 
 Section 1.  To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, the expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
 

Line 
Item 

Account 
Number 

Amount 
Decrease 

Amount 
Increase 

Amended 
Budget 

 
964 

 
53-714000 

 

 
 

 
$1,061,835 

 

 
      $1,069,335 

     

 
 To provide the additional expenditures for the above, the following revenues will 
be increased: 
 
 Account Name:  Transfer From Water/Sewer Fund 
 Account Number:  53-398602 
 Amount:  $1,061,835 
 
 Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget 
amendment, and that the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
 ____________________________________  __________________ 
 Finance Officer      Date  
 
 Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance 
Officer and Town Auditor for their direction. 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 



LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
 
SUBJECT:  To cover chemical over runs caused by sludge removal. 
 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 
Agenda Location: Consent  
Item Number: D  
Department: Sewer   
Contact: Sam Karr, Finance Director    
Presenter: Sam Karr, Finance Director   

BRIEF SUMMARY: To cover over runs caused by additional removal of sludge at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:   Approve budget amendment 
# 277. 

FUNDING SOURCE:  Transfer from Fund Balance 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Budget Amendment Form 

STAFF’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS: Accept budget amendment # 277. 

 



Budget Amendment #277  
 

TOWN OF LAKE LURE 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 Be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Lake Lure that the 
following amendment be made to the budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020: 
 
Department:  Sewer-Chemicals   
Purpose:         To cover over runs for chemical expenses for sludge treatment.  As we try 
to balance our sludge removal, we have incurred additional chemical cost to remove the 
sludge. 
 
 Section 1.  To amend the Water/Sewer Fund, the expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
 

Line 
Item 

Account 
Number 

Amount 
Decrease 

Amount 
Increase 

Amended 
Budget 

 
215 

 

 
53-714000 

 
 

 
 

 
$20,000 

 
$180,000 

     

 
To provide additional expenditures for the above, the following revenues will be 
increased: 
 Account Name: Transfer From Water/Sewer Fund 
 Account Number: 53-398602 
 Amount:  $20,000 
  
 Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget 
amendment, and that the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
 ____________________________________  __________________ 
 Finance Officer      Date  
 
 Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance 
Officer and Town Auditor for their direction. 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 



LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
 
SUBJECT:  To cover over runs in attorney fees incurred throughout the fiscal year.  
 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 
Agenda Location: Consent  
Item Number: D  
Department: Sewer   
Contact: Sam Karr, Finance Director    
Presenter: Sam Karr, Finance Director   

BRIEF SUMMARY: To cover over runs caused by additional expenses incurred by town attorney 
charges.  With two more months left in the fiscal year, we are almost $10,000 in the red.  Budget 
amendment is necessary to cover the balance to fiscal year end.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:   Approve budget amendment 
# 278. 

FUNDING SOURCE:  Transfer from Fund Balance 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Budget Amendment Form 

STAFF’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  Accept budget amendment #278. 

 



  Budget Amendment #278    _ 

TOWN OF LAKE LURE 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 Be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Lake Lure that the 
following amendment be made to the budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020: 
 
Department:  Administration 
 
Purpose:   To cover attorney fees for the last two months of fiscal year. 
 
 Section 1.  To amend the General Fund, the expenditures are to be changed as 
follows: 
 

Line 
Item 

Account 
Number 

Amount 
Decrease 

Amount 
Increase 

Amended 
Budget 

 
180 

 
10-413000 

 

 
 

 
$18,000 

 

 
      $43,000 

     

 
 To provide the additional expenditures for the above, the following revenues will 
be increased: 
 
 Account Name:  Transfer From Fund Balance 
 Account Number:  10-398604 
 Amount:  $18,000 
 
 Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget 
amendment, and that the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
 ____________________________________  __________________ 
 Finance Officer      Date  
 
 Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance 
Officer and Town Auditor for their direction. 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 



LAKE LURE TOWN COUNCIL 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  May 12, 2020 
 
 
SUBJECT:  PARTF Campground Grant and Land Loan Payoffs  
 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 
Agenda Location: Consent  
Item Number: D  
Department: Finance   
Contact: Sam Karr, Finance Director    
Presenter: Sam Karr, Finance Director 
  
BRIEF SUMMARY:  To recognize PARTF Campground grant ($223,125) and payoff two land 
loans ($204,323) and set aside $50,000 for future PARTF Grant expenses. To completely pay 
balance off-we need an additional $10,428, which can come from Debt Service Interest, which 
will have enough balance to cover the overrun. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:  Accept BA#279-recongnizing 
the PARTF Grant and payoff of loan.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE: PARTF Grant and already budgeted expenses for loans. 
 

STAFF’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  Acknowledge PARTF Grant and 
payoff existing loan on said property. 

 



Budget Amendment #279 

TOWN OF LAKE LURE 
BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 
 Be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Lake Lure that the 
following amendment be made to the budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2020: 
 
Department:  Debt Service & PARTF Grant-Campground 
 
Purpose:   To recognized PARTF Grant ($223,125) , set aside $50,000 for future 

PARTF Grant application and payoff of the land loans on campground 
property.  Of $223,125 received, $50,000 will go into fund balance for 
future grant expenses and balance of $173,125 to help pay off loans of 
$204,323.  Additional $10,428 to pay off loans can be paid out on Debt 
Service Interest. 

 
Section 1.  To amend the General Fund, the expenditures are to be changed as                                  
follows: 
 

Line 
Item 

Account 
Number 

Amount 
Decrease 

Amount 
Increase 

Amended 
Budget 

 
570 

 
10-910000 

 

 
 

 
$204,323 

 
      $245,863 

 
966 

 
10-980000 

  
$50,000 

 
$137,458 

 
 

    

 
 

    

 
 To provide the additional revenue for the above, the following Revenues will be 
increased by $223,125: 
 
 Account Name:  State Grant-PARTF 
 Account Number:  10-332940 
 
 Section 2.  I certify that the accounting records provide for this budget 
amendment, and that the revenue source(s) are available: 
 
 ____________________________________  __________________ 
 Finance Officer      Date  
 
 Section 3.  Copies of this amendment shall be delivered to the Budget/Finance 
Officer and Town Auditor for their direction. 
 
Adopted this ______ day of _________________, 2020. 



 

 

 

 

 

Town Council Subcommittee Results & Recommendations 
Lobbyist Interviews 
May 8, 2020 
 

The subcommittee appointed by Town Council convened April 24, 2020 to interview two firms with very 

different strengths and abilities.  The firms were NP Strategy (Earnie Pierson) and The Policy Group 

(Steve Metcalf, John Metcalf).  The minutes from this interview session outline the full interview session 

are attached for Town Council review.  After each interview the subcommittee members discussed the 

qualification of the firm previously interviewed and the responses received from each firm.  The 

subcommittee agreed time was needed for the members to process the information received.  After a 

week, below is a summary of the subcommittees input which now serves as recommendation to Town 

Council: 

NP Strategy is more of a public relations firm rather than lobbyist. The Policy Group is more focused on 

legislative lobbying. Legislators respond to facts and personal relationships.  Of the two firms, The Policy 

Group knows State level lobbying best. More than likely, that’s where the Town needs to focus.  The 

Policy Group is what the Town of Lake Lure needs to build trust and confidence with our State 

legislators.   

Steve Metcalf (The Policy Group) has clearly demonstrated interest in the Town.  If the Town selects The 

Policy Group nothing prevents the Town from reaching out to NP Strategy to perform certain tasks that 

seem to plat to their strengths. This way the Town has the best of both. This is the same strategy the 

Town used with LaBella and WithersRavenel. 

Therefore, the subcommittee recommends The policy Group (Steve Metcalf, John Metcalf) to Town 

Council.  The Town has our message (Strategic Communications Plan) nearly complete and should feed 

this to lobbyist chosen.  Nothing keeps the Town from working with NP Strategy should the Town need 

them to lobby folks at the federal level.   

 

 















 

 

  
Office of the Town Manager  

 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Commissioners 
 
FROM:  Shannon Baldwin, Town Manager 
 
DATE:   May 6, 2020 
 
RE:  Budget Message and Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
 
 
In accordance with Sections 159-11, 159-12, et. al. of the General Statutes of North Carolina, it is my duty to 
submit for your consideration the proposed balanced Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 commencing July 1, 
2020 and ending June 30, 2021.  This budget is based on careful analysis of departmental operating budgets, 
Capital Improvement Plans created working closely with WithersRavenel, and prioritized needs as identified 
by department heads and in conversations with Commissioners.  In summary, the budget is balanced at a 
recommended tax rate of $0.36 per $100 of property value, same as previous year. 
 
This memorandum provides summaries and detailed discussion of the budgets for General Fund, Water/Sewer 
Fund and Electric Fund.  
  
 
 
 REVENUES 

 
I.  GENERAL FUND 

 

 
Ad Valorem and Vehicle Taxes 

 
$3,018,049 

 

State Shared Revenues & Grants $2,388,026  
Installment Loan $84,879  
Lake & Tours $508,550  
Beach  $50,000  
Marina $266,500  
Miscellaneous Revenues $79,162  
Land Use Fees $27,600  
Transfer from Capital Reserve Fund              $325,773  

   
 
TOTAL GENERAL 

 
$6,748,539 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  

   

 
 



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 2 

 

   
                             

 
II.  WATER/SEWER FUND 
 

Water and Sewer 
 

 
$1,220,110 

 
 

TOTAL WATER/SEWER 
 

$1,220,110 
 

 
III.  ELECTRIC FUND 
 

Electric Receipts 
 

$601,500 
  

 
TOTAL ELECTRIC 

 
$601,500 

 
TOTAL REVENUES – ALL FUNDS(memo only) $8,570,149 

 
 

          
 EXPENDITURES 
 
 
I.   GENERAL FUND 

 
 

 

Operations   
Public Safety   
       Fire Department   $900,721 
       Police  $828,461 

 Administration, Finance & Technology   
 Administration $917,254  
 Insurance/Bonding $143,500  
 Information Technology/Telecommunications $99,300  
 Governing Board $32,300  
Public Works & Maintenance   
 Public Works $483,695  
 Sanitation $229,400  
Recreation   
 Parks, Recreation, & Lake $891,494  
 Golf Course $106,000  
 Beach & Marina $17,500  
Community Enhancement   
 Community Development $185,333  
 Economic Development $106,963  
   

Capital Outlay and Debt Service   
Capital Outlay & Projects $1,226,329  
Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund $241,968  



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 3 

 

Debt Service (all general fund depts.) $338,321  

 

                                                                                                            TOTAL GENERAL                                                                                                                                                      $6,773,539 
  

 

$6,748,539  

   
   

 
 
II.   WATER/SEWER FUND 

 
 

 
Sewer Operations 

 
$611,501 

Water Operations $198,940 
Capital Outlay $206,000 
Debt Service 128,975 
Transfer to Equity $74,694 

 
TOTAL WATER/SEWER 

 
$1,220,110 

 
 
 
 
 
 

III. ELECTRIC FUND  
 

Operations $443,730 
Capital Outlay $45,900 

            Transfer to Equity          $111,870 
 

TOTAL HYDRO-ELECTRIC 
 

$601,500 
 

Totals all 
Funds (memo 
only) 

$8,570,149                   

FUND BALANCES 
 
The following information is provided regarding the fund balance or cash for the town's three operating funds 
and three reserve funds: 
                                                                                            

  
Operating Funds 

 
June 30, 20191 

 
June 30, 20202 

General Fund3 $2,470,189 $2,850,000 

 
Water/Sewer Fund4 $71,234 $165,000 

 
Electric Fund4 $337,088 ($200,000) 

        
Reserve Funds 



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 4 

 

Bridge Preservation Fund5 $75,000 $75,000 
 
Silt Removal Fund 

 
$64,265 

 
$64,265 

 
Capital Reserve Fund 

 
$160,770 

 
$76,965 

   
   
        Notes:    1 - From Audit Report for FY2018-19 
             2 - Estimates provided by finance director and based upon data available on April 30, 2020 
       3 - General Fund amounts are fund balances 

4 - Water/Sewer Fund and Electric Fund represent cash & cash equivalents 
5 - The Bridge Preservation Fund was established with $120,000 from the NCDOT for the long-

term maintenance of the old bridge across the Rocky Broad River.   
 

 
 
PROPERTY TAX RATES AND REVENUES 
 
 
    
 Year   Property Tax Revenues   Other Revenues 
 2011/12  $2,156,324 ($0.21 rate)  $2,161,819 
 2012/13  $2,158,569 ($0.21 rate)  $1,660,374 
 2013/14*  $2,124,073 ($0.246 rate)  $1,670,277 
 2014/15  $2,335,023 ($0.276 rate)  $1,735,199 
 2015/16  $2,353,184 ($0.276 rate)  $2,272,312 
 2016/17  $2,690,014 ($0.276 rate)  $2,474,211 
 2017/18  $2,384,895 ($0.276 rate)  $2,693,947 
 2018/19  $3,110,792 ($0.36 rate)  $2,796,500 
 2019/20*  $3,007,042 ($0.36 rate)  $4,443,802 
  
 Projected 
 2020/21  $3,018,049 ($0.36 rate)  $3,730,490   
   
 *The year following a countywide revaluation of property 
 
 
 Composition of the Local Tax Rate: 
  
 Municipal tax   23.90 cents 
 Fire tax      9.10 cents 
 Capital improvements   3.0   cents 
 Total tax rate  36.0   cents 
 
 + Rutherford County 59.7 cents (FY.2019/20 proposed rate) 
 
For the Lake Lure taxpayer, 38% of their property tax bill supports their Lake Lure budget and 62% supports 
Rutherford County’s budget.  The Town has no involvement in the setting of the county rates, the collection of 
the taxes or the spending priorities within the county budget.   
 
A tax rate of 36 cents puts Lake Lure in line with other comparable municipalities that are responsibly 
funding their operations, their capital improvements and capital reserves.  We looked at other 



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 5 

 

retirement/resort communities of similar populations and tax valuations and found that, comparatively, Lake 
Lure taxpayers pay less than their counterparts in these other communities and have a significantly lower debt 
burden.  An alternative to increased taxes is to reduce the level of town services provided, (staffing, assets 
and infrastructure.)  Based on extensive feedback from the community over the last two years and support for 
the visible progress and improvements, the Council supports the current range of services provided by the 
town.  In addition, the Council is funding direct investments in economic development to enhance the local 
economy. 
 
 
We are proposing the same tax rate at $0.36 this year.  On tax bills, citizens will see this in two component 
parts:  a 26.9 cent rate for municipal services and a 9.1 cent rate for fire protection services.  This should 
generate $3,043,049 in tax revenue on real, personal and utility property, assuming a 99.98% collection rate 
on motor vehicles and a 98% collection rate on property other than motor vehicles.  Real estate is valued at 
$831,892,723 and motor vehicles are estimated to be $16,229,000. We have considered our projected 
revenues with COVID-19 in mind in with respect to our state sales tax collections and certain tourist related 
line items. 

 
1. Fees and charges - All of the fees and charges for town services have been reviewed and the budget 

assumes no additional increase in those fees and charges.     

 
2. Fund Balances -  The proposed budget also utilizes $325,773 from the capital reserve fund, 

accumulated from 3 cents of tax earmarked for capital improvements in prior years. 

 
3. Dredging - The proposed budget includes $425,000 for dredging-related expenses.  This is part of a 10-

year commitment to this critical, high-priority task as recommended by the Lake Advisory Board.  

 
4. Additional revenues (through taxes, fees or growth in property values) or eliminate services and 

associated costs from the budget.   

 
5. Increases in Operating Costs  

a. Medical Insurance costs increased 10% 

b. Utility Costs have increased 5% 

 
6. Thirty-nine percent of the General Fund operating budget goes to Police, Fire and Administration 

services, which is common among municipalities. These services are outlined below: 

 
 Service Area:  With a permanent population of 1,200 and seasonal population estimated at 

10,000, the Town of Lake Lure covers 14 square miles [note:  it is larger than the combined 

areas of Hendersonville, Flat Rock, Laurel Park and 1/3 of Fletcher.]  In the five 
surrounding counties, only Asheville and Mills River are larger in area than Lake Lure.  We 
have over 2,000 housing units and 51 miles of public roads separated by an 800-acre lake.  
There is over $858 million in property value within the town limits. 

 



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 6 

 

 Police:  To protect the Lake Lure area effectively and safely, we have 8 patrol officers, an 
administrative assistant and a Police Chief.  We provide 24-hour coverage by 2 officers as a 
crime deterrent, to provide prompt response throughout our service area and as safety backup 
for an officer on duty.  Although we receive some support from county services (sheriff and 
EMS), these agencies cover a much larger region and have not committed to providing the 
service levels desired by the Town.  We are budgeting for one additional police vehicle. 

 
 Fire: To provide fire protection, medical and rescue services throughout the town, we 

maintain a Lake Lure department (with 7 staff) and contract with 3 volunteer departments.  
This level of coverage affords an insurance rating that directly reduces the costs of 
homeowner’s insurance for each structure in town by as much as 50%.  The collective 
savings to homeowners far exceeds the total fire protection budget. The Lake Lure fire 
budget represents 9.1 cents per $100 of property value.  Elsewhere in the county, that cost 
ranges from 3 cents (Chimney Rock Village) to 18 cents (Forest City).  Most common is 8 or 
9 cents per $100.    
 

 Administration:  the following functions are provided by 7 individuals and outside 
contractors in the Administration budget:  Executive Management, Financial Management & 
Audit, Town Clerk/Recordkeeping, Human Resources, Customer Service, Legal services, and 
Communications/Public Information services. A wage and salary study verified our wages 
and salaries are competitive with our peers. We are proposing an additional staff accounting 
position. 

 

 Community Development: Overall, department costs decrease due to in staffing and 
reorganization. 

 

 This budget has five different grants to help fund some of the capital projects. 
 

2. Water and sewer operations: These are tracked in their own enterprise fund.  In the last few 
years we have stabilized these operations and continued a program of minor repairs and 
improvements.  Of most concern is Waste Water Treatment Plant operations, where 
compliance issues, challenges with inefficient plant, outsourcing operations, rising chemical 
costs have dramatically increased our annual operating costs.  In Lake Lure, the unique 
challenges of our geography, age of the infrastructure and small customer base make it 
difficult to cover costs without setting very high rates.  Several water and sewer projects are 
top priorities to be addressed using the Capital Reserve Fund and infrastructure loans. We 
will be setting aside surplus to help fund the Sewer SRL (State Revolving Loan) Fund.  There 
are no proposed rate increases for the proposed budget. 

 
3. Hydroelectric generation: Revenues in the Electric Fund are conservatively projected to be 

approximately $600,000. Plant improvements are budgeted as part of the multi-year capital 
improvement plan.  Our goal is to have the small generator online before the new fiscal year 
begins. 

 
4. Golf Course – The golf course continues under the operation of the Lake Lure Golf 

Management, Inc. under the oversight of company president Dale Minick.  The FY 20-21 
operating budget includes a $100,000 subsidy to the course operator and $6,000 for the 
maintenance of buildings.  All other expenses, as well as revenues, profits or losses will be 
the responsibility of Lake Lure Golf Management, Inc.  Over the FY 20-21, staff will be 
soliciting qualifications to secure professional assistance with plans to repurpose the Golf 



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 7 

 

Course Property. 
 

5. Parks, Rec & Lake:  Slight increase due to salary adjustment and the request for two work 
trucks.  Due to a PARTF grant, the Town will be retiring two outstanding loans for the Boys 
Camp Road properties. 

 
6. Debt Service – the budget contains the following debt: 

 
  General Fund 

- Vehicles-Police, Lake, Rec, & Parks 
- Old Marina Renovation  
- Fire Engine 
- Boardwalk Replacement/New Marina 
- Patrol Boat 
- Aerifier 
- Dump truck 

 
  Water and Sewer Fund 

- Water Line Extension to Ingles  
- Sewer Joint Wrapping Program                   

7. Salaries & Benefits:  A 2.5% cost-of-living salary adjustment (C.O.L.A.) is included in the 
budget.  The budget maintains current levels of contribution to retirement and healthcare 
benefits, which include: 

- NC state employees retirement fund premiums (defined benefit plan) 
- A 401K contribution match of up to 5% of earnings for all full-time employees 
- Employee healthcare insurance premiums 
- NC state retirees healthcare insurance premiums 
 

8. Vehicles & Watercraft – in the coming year, we will continue our practice of retiring these 
assets to ensure the smallest and most efficient fleet required to provide needed town 
services.  We will utilize loans and the Capital Reserve Fund to replace needed assets at the 
end of their usable life.  

 
9. Outsourcing:  We will continue to seek opportunities for outsourcing, keeping employee 

headcount low by using public tax dollars to contract with the private sector to provide 
municipal services.  We already contract for: 

- garbage & recycling collection 
- sewer treatment plant operation (under review) 
- golf course operation (under review) 
- beach and marina operation 
- engineering  
- legal 
- financial audit 
 

In the future, we will be seeking opportunities to reduce costs by utilizing exiting staff in 
areas where we have outsourced operations in the past namely the golf course and WWTP 
operations. 

 
10. Contingency – this line item is typically used to cover unanticipated costs or needs during the 

year that were not appropriated elsewhere.  Contingency funds are used only upon approval 



Budget Message 
May 6, 2020 
Page 8 

 

by the Town Council in a budget amendment.  If unused at the end of the year, they can be 
appropriated for other purposes or returned to fund balance.  To balance this year’s budget, 
we have eliminated this line item.  Thus, a significant, unplanned expenditure will need to be 
covered from accumulated fund balance in the General Fund upon approval by Town 
Council.  

 
 
While this budget does not address every need, want, preference, desire, project, program, or requested 
capital item, it will provide for the continuation of the municipal services currently provided and at the level 
expected by our residents, while ensuring that we are maintaining the assets we have and making significant 
strategic investments in the community.  
 
 
I hereby request your formal adoption of the town budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 before or on June 9, 
2020. 
 
 
cc: Town Council 
  
 Sam Karr, Finance Director 

Department Heads 
 
















































